
13 January 2014 Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 
Monday 13 January 2014, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
     

 
Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 

 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 

 
Councilmember Brenda Peace-Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Fearldine A. Simmons 
Councilmember George M. Daye 
 

City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 

 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 

 
In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance 
and operations of the City. 
 



13 January 2014 Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 

V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
a) 9 December 2013 Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 

 
VII. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 

a) Recognition of Retiree Patricia M. Jackson 
b) Recognition of Newly Appointed Police Chief Marcus Barrow 
 

VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
a) Conduct a Public Hearing for the Purpose of Receiving Initial Citizen Comments 

Relative to Ordinance 14-03, Requiring Various Certificates and Permits Have the 
Same Legal Entity Name. (CAF 14-04)  [See Notebook Tab 2] 
 
 Public Hearing 
 Ordinance 14-03 

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen 
Comment Guidelines that are provided below.3 
 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-01, Receiving the Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report for FY Ending 30 June 2013. (CAF 14-01) [See Notebook 
Tab 3] 
 
 Resolution 14-01 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern to 
them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three minutes 
should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public hearing 
comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, be 
scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be directed to 
the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public comment 
section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



13 January 2014 Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 
b) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 14-03, Approving the Bid Award for the 

Henderson Police Department Training Center Repair Project to Highland Company 
of Eastern NC, LLC, and 2) Ordinance 14-01, FY14 BA #22, Amending the Project 
Budget to Include Additional Repairs.   (CAF 14-02) [See Notebook Tab 4] 
 
 Resolution 14-03 
 Ordinance 14-01 

 
c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-10, Authorizing an Agreement Between 

the Embassy Cultural Center Foundation and the City of Henderson for the Use of 
City Owned Parking Lot and Approving Terms of a Temporary Construction 
Easement Allowing Use of City Owned Parking Spaces by Variety Wholesalers, Inc.  
(CAF 14-19)  [See Notebook Tab 5] 
 
 Resolution 14-10 

 
d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-05, Providing for the Disposition of 

Jointly Held Property by the City and Country Otherwise Identified as 514 High 
Street Tax Parcel #0008 01033.  (CAF 14-11)  [See Notebook Tab 6] 
 
 Resolution 14-05 

 
e) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-09, FY14 Budget Amendment #23, 

Amending the Water Fund to Use Contingency Funds to Appropriate Additional 
Legal Fees Within the Water Distribution Department. (CAF 14-16) [See Notebook 
Tab 7] 
 
 Ordinance 14-09 

 
XI. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda have either been previously discussed by 
City Council during a previous meeting and/or are considered in the ordinary course of 
business by the City Council and will be enacted-on by one motion and a roll call vote in 
the form listed.  If discussion is desired by either the Council or the Audience, the item in 
question will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately after the 
revised consent agenda has been approved 
 
a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-04, FY14 Budget Amendment #20, 

Authorizing the Transfer of Contingency Funds to Engineering in the CIP Regional 
IBT Project.  (CAF 14-05) [See Notebook Tab 8] 

 
 Ordinance 14-04 

 
b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-08, Awarding of Departmental Handgun 

and Badge to Retiree Lieutenant Marshall Perry.  (CAF 14-14)  [See Notebook Tab 
9] 

 
 Resolution 14-08 



13 January 2014 Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
c) Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the 

Months of November and December 2013.  (CAF 14-07)  [See Notebook Tab 10] 
 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen 
Comment Guidelines that are provided below.4 
 

XIII. REPORTS 
 
a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
b) City Manager 

i. Perry Memorial Library, Inc. Audit Report [See Notebook Tab 11] 
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Meeting and Events Calendar [See Notebook Tab 12] 
ii. Fire Department Report 

 
XIV. WORK SESSION 

 
a) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 14-07, Authorizing the Execution of 

Change Order #2 for the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Project to Devere 
Construction Company, Inc. in the Amount of $33,080, and 2) Ordinance 14-08, 
Amending the FY14 Budget to Authorize the Use of the Contingency Funds to the 
Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Project for Change Order #2. (CAF 14-13)  
[See Notebook Tab 13] 

 
 Resolution 14-07 
 Ordinance 14-08 

 
XV. ADJOURNMENT   
 

                                                 
4 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters 
of concern to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City 
Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to 
three minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the 
public hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, 
if in order, be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are 
to be directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; 
and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the 
public comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

9 December 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 9 

 City Council Minutes  
Regular Meeting 
9 December 2013 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, George 
M. Daye and Council Member – Elect Fearldine A. Simmons 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Member Vernon L. Brown 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, Jr., City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Katherine C. Brafford, Engineering 
Director, Peter Sokalski, Kerr Lake Regional Water Director Christy Lipscomb, Code 
Compliance Director Corey Williams, Planning and Community Development Director Erris 
Dunston, Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom Spain, Recreation and Parks 
Director Alan Gill, Youth Services Director Donna Stearns, Human Resources Director Cathy 
Brown, Interim Police Chief Marcus Barrow and Fire Chief Danny Wilkerson. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 9 December 2013 Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Brenda Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
OPENING COMMENTS 
 
Mayor O’Geary said it was a pleasure to see so many attending this special meeting.  He said he 
is always happy to see citizens at Council Meetings. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

9 December 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 9 

ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda. City Clerk McCrackin said 
with Council’s approval a Closed Session will be added Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(3) 
regarding Attorney/Client Privilege (Oxford Law Suit).  Council Member Inscoe moved to 
accept the adjusted Agenda.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey and unanimously 
approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Kearney moved the approval of the 25 November 2013 Short Regular and 25 November 2013 
Work Session minutes as presented.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye and 
unanimously approved. 
 
PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
Mayor O’Geary recognized retiree Emma Granston by reading a Proclamation and presenting 
her an engraved clock.  The Mayor told Ms. Granston he hated to see her retire and said he 
would miss saying good morning to her.  She received a round of applause from both Council 
and attendees. 
 
Mayor O’Geary then asked Donna Stearns to come forward to give a summary of the United 
Way Campaign.  Ms. Stearns said there were five (5) departments with 100% participation this 
year.  She said the total giving was in the mid-range of giving which she felt was good 
considering the economic conditions.  As a City employee and also as director of the Henderson 
Vance Recreation Youth Services which is partially funded by United Way, Ms. Stearns 
expressed appreciation to the Council and employees for their support. 
 
Mayor O’Geary thanked Ms. Stearns for spearheading the campaign as she has done for many 
years in the past. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to 
Council on agenda matters.   
  
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Authorizing a Bid Award for the High Service Pump Replacement in the Amount of 
$914,866 to Dellinger Inc., of Monroe, North Carolina for the Regional Water System and 
Amending the KLRWP High Speed Efficiency Pump Project Fund. (Reference: CAF 13-06; 
Resolution 13-04; Ordinance 13-71) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frazier to familiarize Council regarding this 
item.  Mr. Frazier said this is a project that has been in the works for quite a while.  On 23 July 
2012, Council approved acceptance of a 0% interest loan from the State to replace an existing 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

9 December 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 9 

700Hp Finished water pump with a 750Hp Finished variable frequency drive water pump.  The 
new pump will ensure redundancy, efficiency of pumping capacity and reliability.  After the 
plans and specifications were updated by EE&T, as part of the 20MGD project, and after the 
proper publishing and opening of bids, it is recommended the bid award be given to Dellinger, 
Inc., of Monroe, North Carolina. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked for verification that the funds were coming out of the Regional 
Water budget.  Mr. Frazier responded yes.  Mr. Inscoe also shared that this project was endorsed 
by the KLRW partners during its meeting this morning.    
 
There were no further questions or comments.  Mayor O’Geary then asked for the pleasure of 
Council. 
 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 13-04, Authorizing a Bid Award for 
the High Service Pump Replacement in the Amount of $914,866 to Dellinger Inc., of Monroe, 
North Carolina for the Regional Water System and Ordinance 13-71, Amending the KLRWP 
High Speed Efficiency Pump Project Fund. Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey and 
APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke and Daye.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: Brown.   (See Resolution Book 3, p 
103; Ordinance Book 9, p 63) 
 
Authorizing the Acceptance of the Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan for the Elmwood 
Cemetery Sewer Main Replacement Project (Resolution 13-72,); 2) Resolution 13-68, 
Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with McGill Associates, P.A. for the Completion of 
Engineering Design for the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project; and 3) Ordinance 13-50, FY 14 
Budget Amendment #14, Revising the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall CIP Project Budget to 
Encompass All Additional Costs Incurred for the Project. (Reference:  CAF 13-108; Resolution 
13-72, Resolution 13-68 and Ordinance 13-50) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier to review this item and 
mentioned Andy Lovingood from McGill Associates is present to answer any questions Council 
may have.  Mr. Frazier said this item was brought before Council at the last meeting as a Consent 
Agenda Item.  Council Member Kearney asked to have this item removed from the Consent 
Agenda until a discussion could be held as to whether a reduction in fees had been negotiated.  
Mr. Frazier said there has been a reduction in costs by $3,700 from $202,000 to $198,300.  
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if costs could be further reduced with City staff performing some 
of the work.  Mr. Frazier said he would certainly look into the possibility but felt staff is 
currently stretched too thin to take on part of this project. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Coffey moved the approval of Resolution 13-72, Authorizing the Acceptance of 
the Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan for the Elmwood Cemetery Sewer Main Replacement 
Project (Resolution 13-72,); 2) Resolution 13-68, Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with 
McGill Associates, P.A. for the Completion of Engineering Design for the Elmwood Cemetery 
Outfall Project; and 3) Ordinance 13-50, FY 14 Budget Amendment #14, Revising the Elmwood 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

9 December 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 9 

Cemetery Outfall CIP Project Budget to Encompass All Additional Costs Incurred for the Project.  
Motion seconded by Council Member Daye and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: 
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Daye and Kearney.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT: Brown.   (See Resolution Book 3, p 245 and 237, Ordinance Book 9, p. 21) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
The City Clerk read the Consent Agenda which is summarized as follows: 
 
Handicap Parking and Loading/Unloading Zone on Chestnut Street.  (Reference:  CAF 13-
113) This ordinance will allow for a loading/unloading zone and handicap parking on the north 
side of Chestnut Street in front of the Maria Parham Apartments. (See Ordinance Book 9, p 49) 
 
Dissolving the 2005 David Street Community Development Advisory Committee and 
Establishing a City Wide Community  Development Advisory Committee and Establishing 
a Flint Hill Neighborhood Advisory Committee Relative to the CDBG Talent Enhancement 
Grant.  (Reference: CAF 13-98; Resolution 13-65, Resolution 13-78)  To be in compliance with 
the CDBG Talent Enhancement Grant, it is important that the City establish both a city wide 
advisory board and a neighborhood advisory board.  (See Resolution Book 3, p 231 and 257) 
 
Developing a Demolition Contract for Partnerships with Non-Profit Organizations/ 
Churches for the Demolition of Abandoned Structures and Abatement Projects.  (CAF 13-
122; Resolution 13-80)  This allows the City to enter into an agreement with an organization 
and/or church which would allow the organization/church to demolish structures as approved by 
the City Council and the City Attorney.  (See Resolution Book 3, p 26) 
 
Appointments to the Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission.  (CAF 13-123; 
Resolution 13-81)  After proper review by the City Council Boards and Commissions 
Committee, City Council approved three citizen applications to serve on the Human Relations 
Commission.  To balance out the three-year staggered terms, these three individuals were 
appointed for two year terms.  (See Resolution Book 3, p 263) 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if anyone wished to remove an item from the Consent Agenda. There 
were no requests.  Mayor O’Geary then asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda/ 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of the Consent Agenda as presented.  
Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: 
Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Daye, Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT: Brown. 
 
SEATING OF NEW COUNCIL 
 
Mayor O’Geary explained that Council Member Brown was unable to be with us this evening as 
he is out of town and decided not to try to drive due to inclement weather conditions.  Mr. Brown 
sends his regrets and wishes the new Council well.  Mayor O’Geary said the resolution 
recognizing Mr. Brown’s service will be presented when he returns to Henderson. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

9 December 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 9 

Mayor O’Geary then asked the Honorable J. Henry Banks, 9th Judicial District Court Judge, and 
former Council Member, to administer the Oath of Office to the newly elected/re-elected Council 
Members.  Judge Banks reminded the Mayor and Council Members of the serious commitment 
they were making.  Judge Banks first administered the Oath of Office to the re-elected Council 
Members.   Family members and/or friends held the Bible for Sara Coffey, Garry Daeke and 
Michael Inscoe as they each took their Oath of Office.  New Council Member Fearldine 
Simmons asked her immediate family to join her as she took the Oath of Office and her extended 
family members stood during her affirmation.  Judge Banks said this was a special moment as 
the citizens of Henderson have placed their trust in the Council and it also requires a lot of time 
away from family.      
 
Mayor O’Geary officially congratulated each newly seated Council Member and said he looks 
forward to working with each member in moving the City forward.  He then called for a recess 
of approximately thirty (30) minutes for a brief reception. 

 
RECESS FOR NEW COUNCIL RECEPTION 
 
After approximately thirty (30) minutes, Mayor O’Geary thanked everyone for coming and 
reconvened the meeting.  He said subsequent to each seating of a newly elected Council, there 
are two parts to the reorganization.  The first part is the appointment of a Mayor Pro Tempore.  
The second part is the appointment of the City Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk.  He then 
asked the City Clerk to continue with the New Business items. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Appointment of Mayor Pro Tempore.   
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for nominations for Mayor Pro Tempore.  Council Member Daeke 
nominated Council Member Rainey.  He said the honor usually goes to the individual who has 
served the longest and said Mr. Rainey is that person.  Council Member Daye seconded the 
motion.   
 
Appointment of City Manager A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Attorney John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., 
and City Clerk, Esther J. McCrackin 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked that the appointment of the City Manager be considered first.  Motion was 
made by Council Member Rainey to appoint A. Ray Griffin, Jr.  as City Manager.  Motion was 
seconded by Council Member Daye.  The Mayor asked for a verbal vote which was as follows:  
YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons and Daye.  NO:  None.  
ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None. 
 
Mayor O’Geary then asked that the appointment of the City Attorney be considered.  Motion was 
made by Council Member Inscoe to appoint John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., as City Attorney.  Motion 
was seconded by Council Member Coffey.  The Mayor asked for a verbal vote which was as 
follows:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons and Daye.  
NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

9 December 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 6 of 9 

Mayor O’Geary then asked that the appointment of the City Clerk by considered.  Motion was 
made by Council Member Coffey to appoint Esther J. McCrackin as City Clerk.  Motion was 
seconded by Council Member Kearney.  The Mayor asked for a verbal vote which was as 
follows:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons and Daye.  
NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None. 
 
Promissory Note for 2” Water Main Replacement (Reference:  CM 13-33) 
 
City Manager Griffin explained no action is needed for this item.  This loan was accepted on 13 
August 2012 by Resolution 12-62 and serves only as a matter of record by showing the 
promissory note  (see Attachment A) which was executed on 5 December 2013 for $1,898,571 
State Revolving funds at 0% interest. 
 
There was no discussion. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was now prepared to go into Closed Session and stated there 
would be no report following the session. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Coffey moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(3) for an Attorney-Client Privilege Matter regarding the Oxford lawsuit.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Daeke and unanimously approved.  
 
Council Member Coffey moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Daeke and unanimously approved.   
 
WORK SESSION 
 
Authorizing the Transfer of Contingency Funds to Engineering in the CIP Regional IBT 
Project.  (Reference:  CAF 13-126, Ordinance 13-70) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Kerr Lake Regional Water Director Christy Lipscomb to present this 
item.  Ms. Lipscomb said this is a routine matter.  The funds have been held in the contingency 
fund until needed and this transfer will allow funds to pay current bills.  
 
It is the consensus of Council to bring this item forward to the next Council Meeting with a 
consensus as follows:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons 
and Daye.  NO:  None. ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: None. 
 
Off Premise Advertisement Sign Ordinance.  (Reference:  CM 13-32) 
 
City Manager Griffin said this is just informational as the Planning Director Erris Dunston 
continues to work with the City Attorney relative to this ordinance and if is anticipated  this 
ordinance will be brought to the first Work Session in January 2014 
 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

9 December 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 7 of 9 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk McCrackin advised two citizens wished to address City Council.  
 
 Dr. Lucille Hilliard.  P.O. Box 60208, Washington, DC 20039.  Dr. Hilliard presented 
information to Council regarding her non-profit organization called Growing On (GO).  She 
brought her daughter Rhonda Phillips with her and together they shared the need for children to 
learn skills to go forward, enhance character and build life skills.  As part of her synopsis, she 
used a live plant which starts as a seed in good soil.  Coming from a farming family in 
Henderson, she emphasized the need for good soil which she compared to job readiness, self-
respect, life skills, leadership, developing confidence and a positive self-image.  She then used a 
fake plant to show how easily it falls apart.  She concluded by saying she hoped for a partnership 
with the City. 
 
Mayor O’Geary and several Council Members thanked Dr. Hilliard and thought she had a 
wonderful program. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins mentioned that Dr. Hilliard contacted herself and Council 
Member Daye via the City’s web page. 
 
 Mr. Tim Bowden, 59 Wendy Court, Henderson.  Mr. Bowden arrived during the recess.  
The City Clerk advised Mr. Bowden that since he was unable to sign-in before the start of this 
meeting, it would be up to Council to allow him to speak.  When Council went to Closed 
Session, Mr. Bowden chose to leave the meeting although he was told Council would return 
shortly. 
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem - Mayor Pro-Tem Rainey said he appreciated the confidence 
shown to him this evening in re-appointing him Mayor Pro-Tem.  He said the Mayor is a 
tough act to follow and is very well-liked.  Mr. Rainey said if anyone does not think the 
City is growing, he said sometimes there are several ribbon-cuttings in a week.  He also 
mentioned the addition to Brewer Cycle and said it would nice to see more businesses 
adding on. 

 
Council Member Coffey said that she is helping to re-open the Tip Top Restaurant.  She said 
work is on-going both inside and out and they expect to open in mid-January. 
 

b) City Manager – City Manager Griffin recognized the City employees for all their hard 
work throughout the year.  He said the Department Heads are working well as a team.  
He went on to thank Council for appointing him as City Manager saying Henderson is a 
good place and the Council works well together to reach middle ground to help the City 
grow. 
 
Mr. Griffin wished each Council Member a very Merry Christmas. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

9 December 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 8 of 9 

c) City Attorney – John Zollicoffer, Jr. expressed his appreciation for being re-appointed as 
City Attorney and also wished Council a happy holiday season. 
 

d) City Clerk  - Ms. McCrackin thanked Council for their confidence and said she looked 
forward to working with all the Council Members in the coming year. 

 
As Mayor for the past six year, James “Pete” O’Geary said he is looking forward to two more 
years of working with the Council and staff.  He said it has been a pleasure to serve and wished 
everyone a wonderful and blessed holiday season. 
 
Council Member Inscoe brought attention to an article  (Triangle Round Table) which he 
distributed to Council from the North Carolina Magazine. The article referenced Research 
Triangle Park. 
 
On another matter, Council Member Inscoe requested a monthly update regarding the project 
status and mentioned specifically the on-going Chavasse/Beckford Drive projects. 
 
Council Member Daye thanked Dr. Hilliard again for addressing Council saying he specifically 
like her good soil analogy.  He said there are a lot of good things about Henderson and he hopes 
more focus will be placed on the positives. 
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey, 
and was unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor   
 
      ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin  
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

9 December 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 9 of 9 

 
Attachment A 

 



CAF 14-04: 13 January 2014 Public Hearing 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________ 

 
30 December 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-04 

Conduct a Public Hearing for the Purpose of Receiving Initial Citizen Comments 
Relative to Ordinance 14-03, Requiring Various Certificates and Permits Have the 
Same Legal Entity Name. 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 3: Enhanced Economic Development 

o  AP 3-2: Revise and Align Land Use and Sign Ordinances and Implement 
Conditional Use Zoning. 

 
 

Recommendation: 
 
 Conduct a Public Hearing for the Purpose of Receiving Initial Citizen Comments Relative to 

Ordinance 14-03, Requiring Various Certificates and Permits Have the Same Legal Entity 
Name. 

 
Executive Summary: 

 
This ordinance is a recommendation from the Planning Board brought forth by the City Staff 
relative to the identifications of businesses.  In order to operate a business within the City limits a 
business must have proper zoning permits, fire inspections and, if required, a City Privilege 
License and Alcohol permit.  These permits and certificates are issued by various City 
departments. 
 
The current policy does not require a business to have the same entity name on all of its permits, 
which presents a challenge if businesses have permits in different names when it comes to 
permitting and enforcement practices.   
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 Jan Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 14-04: 13 January 2014 Public Hearing 
Page 2 of 5 

 

Ordinance 14-03 is adding two sections to the Zoning Ordinance, section 903.6 and 903.7.   
 
Section 903.6 requires a Certificate of Zoning Compliance be obtained whenever there is a 
change in ownership, occupant or change in business operator if there has not been a change 
materially, or the property has been vacated within the last 180 days.  
 
Section 903.7 requires all applications and certificates including Zoning Certificates, Privilege 
Licenses, Fire Inspections and Alcohol Permits have the same legal entity name.  
 
Ordinance 14-03 also adds a new paragraph to Section 3.2 of the City Code relative to Privilege 
License Tax.  This new paragraph requires that all privilege license tax must be in the same legal 
entity name as the Certificate of Zoning Compliance, Fire Inspection Certificate and any Alcohol 
Permit issued by any governmental authority.    
 
The City Staff worked collaboratively on this recommendation understanding it will affect 
various City Departments. The Planning Board unanimously approved these recommended 
changes to the Zoning Ordinance and the City Code on December 2, 2013 at their regular 
meeting.   
 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Ordinance 14-03  
2. Planning Board Recommendations 



CAF 14-04: 13 January 2014 Public Hearing 
Page 3 of 5 

 

ORDINANCE  14-03   
 
 
After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after a duly advertised public hearing 
thereon, Councilperson ___________________________ introduced the following Ordinance which was 
seconded by Councilperson ______________________ and read: 
 

“AN ORDINANCE REQUIRING THAT VARIOUS PERMITS AND  
CERTIFICATES BE IN THE SAME LEGAL ENTITY NAME ” 

 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 

Section 1. That two new Sections be added to the Zoning Code being designated as Section 
903.6 and 903.7 reading as follows:     
 

“903.6. Application Required Upon Change of Structure Ownership or Primary 
Occupant or Business Operator.  A Certificate of Zoning Compliance shall be 
required whenever there is a change in the ownership, primary occupant, or 
business operator of any structure; provided, however, that no site plan or additional 
Special Use Permit shall be required when the prior approved use has not been 
materially changed and the property has not been vacated within the last 180 days 
prior to said application. 
 
903.7. Applications and Certificates Shall Be in the Same Legal Entity Name.  All 
Certificates of Zoning Compliance shall be in the same name as the Business 
Privilege Licenses (issued pursuant to Section 3.2 of the City Code) by the City of 
Henderson, the Fire Inspections and any Alcohol Permits issued by the proper 
governmental authorities.”  

 
Section 2.   That a new paragraph be added to Section 3.2 of the City Code relative to Privilege 
License taxes, said new paragraph reading as follows: 
 

“That all privilege license taxes issued hereunder must be in the same legal entity name 
as any Zoning Certificate of Compliance issued pursuant to Section 305.6, Fire 
Inspection Certifications, and any Alcohol Permit issued by any governmental authority.” 

 
Section 3.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 14-04: 13 January 2014 Public Hearing 
Page 4 of 5 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-03, upon motion of Council member ____________ and 
seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ 
day of _______________, 2014:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-03,An 
Ordinance Requiring That Various Permits And Certificates Be In The Same Legal Entity Name, 
adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on **  ** 20** (See Minute Book 4*, 
p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 9, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 14-04: 13 January 2014 Public Hearing 
Page 5 of 5 

 

                   City of Henderson 
   Planning and Community Development Department 
Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434 

 Phone: (252) 430-5723         FAX:  (252) 492-7935 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE December 2, 2013 
PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

 
Recommendation of an Ordinance Requiring that Various Permits and Certificates be in 
the Same Legal Entity Name    

 
The above recommendation went before the Planning Board on December 2, 2013. Item was 
introduced by Zoning Administrator Sherry Moss. Moss reviewed items of the agenda packet. 
Planning Director Erris Dunston addressed the Planning Board the purpose of the ordinance. 
Dunston shared with the board that this ordinance requires a business to operate under one name. 
There have been some instances in the city where the owner in the water records is one name. 
The owner of the zoning permit is one name, and the alcohol permit is in another name. Dunston 
addressed the board that businesses need to be under one identity.  Dunston raised the concern 
with convenient stores frequently changing ownership, in which they’re only getting the business 
license and the zoning permit changed and stated they don’t go through the whole process. So if 
something comes up, when enforcement needs to be done, there are a lot of names to go through. 
The ordinance will require businesses to have one form of identity; the same responsible party 
throughout the whole permitting process. The board further discussed licenses and permits 
regarding the permitting process. The board stated this ordinance is a great idea.  
 
Motioned by Vice Chairman Horace Bullock to APPROVE recommendation; Second by Board 
Member Marguerite Anduze; all members were in favor; AYES: M. Rainey, H. Bullock, M. 
Anduze, J. Ayscue, A. Henderson, P. Walters, and R. Easter; NOES: None; ABSENT: Charles 
Douglas 
 
 



CAF 14-01:  13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
______________________________________ 

 

7 January 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  14-01   

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-01, Receiving the Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report for FY Ending 30 June 2013. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-01, Receiving the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 

FY Ending 30 June 2013. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Mr. Curtis Averette, Certified Public Accountant with William L. Stark and Company has 
conducted the audit of the basic financial statements of the City of Henderson and will report his 
findings at tonight’s meeting. 
 
Highlights of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) are as follows: 

 
a. Total assets exceeded total liabilities (for all funds) by $94,575,578. 
b. The General Fund Balance (excluding Powell Bill, Federal Asset Forfeitures, Reserved 

by State Statute, and Assigned for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures) totaled $2,966,287, 
an increase of $960,747 over last year’s total.  This “unassigned” fund balance represents 
22.36% of the fiscal year expenditures.  This is the City’s “conservative” fund balance 
percentage.  Per the Local Government Commission’s (LGC) computation, the fund 
balance percentage would be 30.51% (compared to the required 8%). 

 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Resolution 14-01 
2. FY 2012-2013 Audit (to be presented at meeting) 

 
 

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 Jan 14 Regular Meeting 



CAF 14-01:  13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
14-01 

 
 

A RESOLUTION RECEIVING THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
REPORT FOR FY ENDING JUNE 30, 2013 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 

January 2013 and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and 12 Core Values and Principals That Guide Our Work; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses CV 10: Transparency in Governance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Curtis Averette, Certified Public Accountant with William L. Stark and 

Company has conducted the audit of the basic financial statements of the City of 
Henderson; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for FY ending June 30, 2013 has been 

prepared; and  
 
WHEREAS, the FY13 Audit has been submitted to and approved by the North Carolina Local 

Government Commission; and 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY RECEIVE the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for FY ending 
June 30, 2013 

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-01, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the 13th day of January 2014:   YES:   .  NO:   .  ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 
 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. **. 



CAF 14-02: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 11 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

17 December 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-02 

Consideration of Approval of: 1) Resolution 14-03, Approving the Bid Award for 
the Henderson Police Department Training Center Repair Project to Highland 
Company of Eastern NC, LLC, and; 2) Ordinance 14-01 FY 14 BA#22, Amending 
the Project Budget to Include Additional Repairs. 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
KSO 2: To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of: 
 
 1) Resolution 14-03, Approving the Bid Award for the Henderson Police Department 

Training Center Repair Project to Highland Company of Eastern NC, LLC. 
 

  2) Ordinance 14-01, FY14 BA#22, Amending the Project Budget to Include Additional 
Repairs. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
On March 30, 2013, a fire damaged the shelter and contents (grills, coolers, etc.) at the Police 
Training Center on Hwy 158 Business.   A claim was filed with the NC League of Municipalities 
(“League”) under the terms of the City’s property and liability insurance policy.  The claim was 
settled and a check from the League in the amount of $29,678.24 was received and deposited 
into the City’s account on June 26, 2013. 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 

Agenda Item: _________ 
 

Council Meeting: 13 January 13 Reg. Meeting 



CAF 14-02: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 11 

 

Following an advertised bid process conducted by City Engineer Peter Sokalski and Interim 
Chief Marcus Barrow for the repairs needed, only one bid was received.  This bid was from 
Highland Company of Eastern NC, LLC in the amount of $29,700.  
 
Also submitted for bid were two (2) sub awards for needed repairs not related to the fire.  These 
repairs are for capping and sealing an unused well located on the property during the inspection 
following the fire, and the demolition of the old “mobile unit” training building which is not 
usable at this time and poses a hazard at the facility. Highland Company has submitted a bid for 
these two sub awards as well totaling $5,760.  However, if the sub awards are accepted, they will 
reduce the cost of these repairs by $700 bringing the bid down to $5,060.  The funding for these 
repairs would come from State Asset Forfeiture Funds.  The current balance of the State Asset 
Forfeiture fund is $35,168.26, the majority of which resides in restricted fund balance in the 
General Fund. 
 
Resolution 14-03 approves the bid award to Highland Company of Eastern NC, LLC for the 
repairs needed in the total amount of $34,760 ($29,700 plus $5,060) and Ordinance 14-01, FY14 
Budget Amendment #22, amends the project budget to include the extra repairs. 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Resolution 14-03 
2. Ordinance 14-01 

 
  



CAF 14-02: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 11 

 

RESOLUTION 14-03 
 

APPROVING THE BID AWARD FOR THE POLICE TRAINING CENTER 
REPAIRS TO HIGHLAND COMPANY OF EASTERN NC, LLC  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 

January 2013, and during said retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and 
Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 2: 

Reduce Crime; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 30, 2013, a fire damaged the shelter and contents (grills, coolers, etc.) at 

the Police Training Center on Hwy 158 Business; and 
 
WHEREAS,  a claim was filed with the NC League of Municipalities (“League”) under the 

terms of the City’s property and liability insurance policy and a check was received from 
the League in the amount of $29,678.24  and 

 
WHEREAS, the repair project was bid properly through the informal process as well as bids for 

other repairs needed to the center not related to the fire damage; and 
 
WHEREAS, only one bid was received for the project from Highland Company of Eastern NC, 

LLC for the initial repairs as well as the additional repairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bid for all repairs needed totals $34,760, with $29,678.24 from insurance 

receipts and the balance from state asset forfeitures. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it approves the 

bid award to Highland Company of Eastern NC, LLC in the amount of $$34,760, being 
more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-03, upon motion of Council Member ______________ and 
seconded by Council Member _____________ and having been submitted to a roll call vote 
received the following votes and was ____________on this the __th  day of ______ 2014:  YES:.  
NO:  ABSTAIN:.  ABSENT:.    _____________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference Minute Book 42; p ***; CAF 14-02 
  



CAF 14-02: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 11 

 

 
  

Resolution 14-03 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-02: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 11 

 

 
  



CAF 14-02: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 11 

 

 
  



CAF 14-02: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 11 

 

 
  



CAF 14-02: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 11 

 

 
  



CAF 14-02: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 11 

 

 
  



CAF 14-02: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 11 

 

O R D I N A N C E   14-01 
 

FY 2013—2014 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 22 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE GENERAL FUND AND THE CIP GENERAL FUND TO 
TRANSFER FUNDS FROM STATE ASSET FORFEITURE TO SUPPLEMENT THE 
INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT TO HELP RE-BUILD THE SHELTER AT THE 

POLICE TRAINING CENTER 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 27 June 2013 adopted the FY13-14 Annual 

Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital projects 

related to the General Fund, said fund referred to as 41: CIP General Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual operating 

and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that the 

following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon 
approval of the City Council: 

 
 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

 Fund Balance Appropriated 10-990-990999 153,000$      182,700$        5,060$            187,760$                    
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 153,000$      182,700$        5,060$            187,760$                    
187,760$                    

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

 Trans to: 41 CIP General 10-660-561041 -$             29,700$         5,060$            34,760$                      

   -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             29,700$         5,060$            34,760$                      
34,760$                      

Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

Trans fr: 10 General Fund 41-630-461010 -$             29,700.00$     5,060$            34,760$                      
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             29,700.00$     5,060$            34,760$                      
34,760$                      

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

Capital Outlay-Bldg Impr 41-630-507404 -$             29,700$         5,060$            34,760$                      
  -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             29,700$         5,060$            34,760$                      
34,760$                      

Variance -$               

10: General Fund and 41: CIP General FundFUNDS:

10: GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

FY 13-14 Budget Amendment #22

CAF# 14-02; Ordinance #14-01; BA# 22 
13 January 2014 Council Meeting

To transfer funds from State Asset Forfeitures to CIP - General to supplement the insurance proceeds 
received by the City for damages to the Police Training Center.  Bids for repairs came in more than the amount 
of the insurance reimbursement, primarily due to needed repairs unrelated to the fire damage.

41: CIP GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

41:  CIP GENERAL FUND REVENUES

To appropriate fund balance for amount of insurance proceeds received in June 2013 for the damage to the 
shelter at the Police Training Center and to transfer this amount to a CIP General project fund for the purpose 
of tracking the repairs.  This amendment also serves to establish the project budget for the re-building of the 
shelter.

Ordinance 14-01

Reference:
CAF# 13-87; Ordinance #13-44; BA# 5 

22 July 2013 Council Meeting

Notes:

10: GENERAL FUND REVENUES



CAF 14-02: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 11 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-01, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council Member 
***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and was **** on this 
the 13th day of January 2014:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 14-02 
  
 
 
 
 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do hereby certify 
the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-01  adopted by the Henderson, City Council in 
Regular Session on ________________ 2014. This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  
 



CAF 14-19:  13 January 14 Council Meeting  
Page 1 of 10 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

8 January 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-19 

Approval of Resolution 14-10, Authorizing an Agreement Between the Embassy Cultural 
Center Foundation and the City of Henderson for the Use of City Owned Parking Lot and 
Approving Terms of a Temporary Construction Easement Allowing Use of City Owned 
Parking Spaces by Variety Wholesalers, Inc. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 3: Economic Development  - Redevelop Downtown 
 KSO 7:  Expand Leisure and Cultural Services, Programs and Facilities  

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-10, Authorizing an Agreement Between The Embassy Cultural Center 

Foundation and the City of Henderson for the Use of City Owned Parking Lot and Approving Terms 
of a Temporary Construction Easement Allowing Use of City Owned Parking Spaces by Variety 
Wholesalers, Inc.  
 

Executive Summary 
 
On 13 May 13 Council approved Resolution 13-39 authorizing an agreement between the Embassy 
Cultural Center Foundation and the City of Henderson which enabled the procession of the construction 
the Performing Arts Center adjacent to McGregor Hall located on Breckenridge Street. 
 
As you were previously notified via CM 13-28 in October 2013, the Embassy Cultural Center Foundation 
(Foundation) requested a temporary lease on the City’s parking lot located at the corner of S. Chestnut 
and Breckinridge streets. The lease would be for parking by Perry Library patrons during 
construction of the Performing Arts Center, and for evening parking for patrons attending events 
at the Performing Arts Center. As part of this lease agreement, the Foundation has agreed to grade, 
pave with asphalt, and landscape the property. The end result would be a no-cost, significant 
improvement to the City’s parking lot and expansion of available parking spaces.  
 
The parking lot would continue to be available for City employees of the Police Department and general 
public parking.  This lease agreement would begin February 1, 2014 and expire on January 31, 2015. 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 Jan 14 Regular Meeting 



CAF 14-19:  13 January 14 Council Meeting  
Page 2 of 10 

 

During the construction period, Embassy Foundation has requested a Temporary Construction Easement 
from Variety Wholesalers allowing the Foundation to use Variety’s parking lot for easier access and 
storage of construction materials and equipment.  Subsequently, the City of Henderson is now being 
asked to allow Variety Wholesalers to use a portion of the City owned Parking lot currently used by the 
Perry Library patrons, located at the easternmost intersection of Winder and Chestnut during the duration 
of the Temporary Construction Easement. Library patrons will have access to the Library parking lot 
along Breckenridge Street as well as the parking lot located at the easternmost corner of Breckenridge and 
Chestnut during this same period.  This Temporary Construction Easement would be in force until the 
completion of the Embassy Arts Center or 1 June 2015, whichever occurs first. 
 
As previously mentioned, the Foundation is not requesting the City to participate financially in either the 
construction and/or operations of the Performing Arts Center. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 14-10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 14-19:  13 January 14 Council Meeting  
Page 3 of 10 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   14-10 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
EMBASSY CULTURAL CENTER FOUNDATION AND THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON AND APPROVING TERMS OF A TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION 
EASEMENT ALLOWING USE OF CITY OWNED PARKING SPACES BY VARIETY 

WHOLESALERS, INC. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2013, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 

3: Economic Development - Redevelop Downtown, and KSO 7:  Expand Leisure and 
Cultural Services, Programs and Facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Embassy Cultural Center Foundation (Foundation) will build a performing arts 

center; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Foundation has requested to be awarded a temporary lease, on the City’s parking lot 

located at the corner of S. Chestnut and Breckinridge streets primarily for library patrons use; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Foundation has agreed to grade, pave with asphalt, and landscape the property 

herein leased in anticipation of its future non-exclusive use of the same;  and 
 

WHEREAS, during the construction period, the Foundation has requested a Temporary 
Construction Easement from Variety Wholesalers allowing them the use of their parking 
lot for easier access and storage of construction materials and equipment; and 

 
WHEREAS, during the duration of the Temporary Construction Easement, the City of 

Henderson will allow Variety Wholesalers to use a portion of the City owned Parking lot 
now used by the Perry Library patrons, located at the easternmost intersection of Winder 
and Chestnut Streets. 

  
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE this Lease Agreement (see Attachment A) between the 
Embassy Cultural Center Foundation and the City of Henderson. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF HENDERSON that Variety Wholesalers 

has use of the aforementioned parking spaces during the Temporary Construction 
Easement (see Attachment B). 

 
 
 



CAF 14-19:  13 January 14 Council Meeting  
Page 4 of 10 

 

The foregoing Resolution 14-10 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the **th day of ****2014:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. **; CAF 14-19 



CAF 14-19:  13 January 14 Council Meeting  
Page 5 of 10 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
         LEASE 
COUNTY OF VANCE 
 
 This Lease, made and entered into this the ______ day of January, 2014, by and between 
the CITY OF HENDERSON (hereinafter referred to as “Landlord”) and THE EMBASSY 
CULTURAL CENTER FOUNDATION, INC. (hereinafter referred to as the “Tenant”); 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Tenant anticipates that it desires parking by Perry Library patrons during 
construction of the Performing Arts Center being constructed on Tenant’s land on Breckenridge 
Street, and further for evening parking for patrons attending events at the Performing Arts 
Center; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Landlord owns property fronting on Breckenridge Street, Chestnut 
Street, and Montgomery Street near the Performing Arts Center being constructed at this time; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the intent of the parties that said City property can be used for non-
exclusive parking until the City desires to construct structures on it in the future; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Tenant desires to grade, pave with asphalt, and landscape the property 
herein leased in anticipation of its future non-exclusive use of the same; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Lease is for a one year term or less pursuant to the second paragraph in 
N.C.G.S. 160A-272; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties propose to keep the present parking facilities located on part of 
the property herein leased available for non-exclusive parking purposes throughout most of the 
term of this Lease; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the property will not be otherwise 
needed by the City for the term of this Lease. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements 
herein set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

(1) This Lease shall commence on the 1st day of February, 2014 and shall extend for 
one year through January 31, 2015, but Tenant can commence work on the property 
at any time prior thereto. 

 
(2) The property herein leased shall be located on the southeast side of Chestnut Street 

extending between Breckenridge Street and Montgomery Street and going back 
along Breckenridge Street and Montgomery Street for a distance of approximately 
225 feet, more or less. 

Attachment A 
Resolution 14-10 



CAF 14-19:  13 January 14 Council Meeting  
Page 6 of 10 

 

(3) During the term of this Lease, the Tenant agrees to grade and pave with asphalt and 
landscape the leased property in accordance with plans which are subject to 
approval by the City Engineer and by the Planning Director of the City of 
Henderson. It is anticipated that there will be two entrance/exit points from said 
proposed new parking facilities leading to and from the adjacent streets. 

 
(4) The parties agree that the existing public parking (on the southeastern corner of 

Chestnut Street and Breckenridge Street, extending back 180 feet, more or less, 
from Chestnut Street and 233 feet, more or less, from Breckenridge Street) shall be 
kept open for Library patron parking as much as is feasibly possible during the 
term of this Lease, although the Tenant agrees to re-asphalt the same in accordance 
with plans approved by the City Engineer and the Planning Director. 

 
(5) All work to be performed by Tenant shall be performed promptly in a good 

workmanlike manner and in accordance with plans that are approved by the City 
Engineer and by the City Planning Director. 

 
(6) During the term if this Lease, where construction has been completed, the property 

shall be used for non-exclusive parking purposes only. 
 
 
(7) The Landlord agrees, as owner of the property, to absorb any permit fees charged 

by the City of Henderson for zoning permits, building permits or soil erosion and 
sedimentation permits, if any, relative to the construction on the leased property. 

 
(8) During the term of this Lease, the Tenant shall indemnify and hold harmless the 

Landlord from any liability resulting from its activities and operations on the leased 
property.  The Tenant shall require certificates of insurance from any contractor 
which it retains to do work on the property with minimum coverage of 
$1,000,000.00 for personal injury and death and $100,000.00 relative to property 
damage.    

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Lease has been signed by each of the Parties this the day 
and year first above written, all by authority of their respective governing bodies. 
 
CITY OF HENDERSON     THE EMBASSY CULTURAL 
CENTER 
        FOUNDATION, INC. 
By:_______________________________      By:_______________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor     John P. Wester, President 
 
Attest: 
__________________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
(Municipal Seal) 



CAF 14-19:  13 January 14 Council Meeting  
Page 7 of 10 

 

 

Resolution 14-10 
Attachment B 



CAF 14-19:  13 January 14 Council Meeting  
Page 8 of 10 

 

 



CAF 14-19:  13 January 14 Council Meeting  
Page 9 of 10 

 

 



CAF 14-19:  13 January 14 Council Meeting  
Page 10 of 10 

 

 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 12 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

8 January 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-11 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-05, Providing for the Disposition of 
Jointly Held Property by the City and County Otherwise Identified as 514 High 
Street Tax Parcel # 0008 01033 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 CV 9:(Core Values)  We value a good working relationship with the County of Vance and 

believe that by working together in a cooperative effort we can better address the strategic 
challenges and opportunities facing our community. 

 
Recommendation:   

 
 Approval of Resolution 14-05, Providing for the Disposition of Jointly Held Property by the 

City and County Otherwise Identified as 514 High Street Tax Parcel # 0008 01033. 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
On 10 September 2012, the City Council approved Resolution 12-79, which provided an 
agreement between the City of Henderson and County of Vance to allow interested parties to bid 
and purchase the properties owned by City of Henderson and County of Vance acquired through 
the tax foreclosure process from Vance County.  
 
The City and County administrations are working on a draft inter-local agreement for the 
governing bodies to consider. The agreement would deal with any current and future jointly 
owned properties acquired through the tax foreclosure process. This process isn’t yet complete. 
 
In the meantime, Vance County Tax Department has received interest from a private buyer to bid 
on and purchase the property located at 514 High Street. The property assessed tax value is 
$32,082 and prior to tax foreclosure, the unpaid taxes totaled $2,732.45.  The City had the 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 Jan 14  Regular Meeting 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 12 

 

following liens against this property for weed abatement, which has now been placed in debt set 
off.  
 
Date  Lien Amount 
04-31-12 $150.00 
09-07-12 $175.00 
10-30-13 $150.00 
Total  $475.00 
 
It is requested Council approve the transfer of this property to Vance County with the 
understanding upon the sale, the proceeds will be shared on a pro-rata basis.   
 
Enclosure: 
 

1. Resolution 14-05 
2. Vance County Request 
3. Offer to Purchase 
4. Copy of Deed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 12 

 

RESOLUTION 14-05 
 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSITION OF JOINTLY 
HELD PROPERTY BY THE CITY AND COUNTY OTHERWISE 

IDENTIFIED AS 514 HIGH STREET TAX PARCEL ID # 0008 01033 
 

WHEREAS,  the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2013, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one Core Value as follows:  CV 9: maintain a good 

working relationship with the County of Vance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) and County of Vance (County) have previously 

discussed the possibility of disposing jointly owned properties acquired through the tax 
foreclosure process; and 

 
WHEREAS, the process to dispose of jointly held properties is cumbersome; and  
 
WHEREAS, there is a potential buyer for the previously mentioned property and both the 

County and City administrations believe it appropriate for the City to transfer its interest 
in said property to the County in order that they might be more expeditiously sold; and  

 
WHEREAS, once sold, the City would receive its pro-rata share of the proceeds from the 

County. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby 

authorize the following: 
 

1. The City Attorney to work with the County Attorney to expeditiously prepare the 
necessary agreements and documents to effect the transfer of the aforementioned 
property from the City of Henderson to the County of Vance. 

2. Said transfer of interests in property is predicated upon and conditioned by the 
appropriate pro-rata division of any net proceeds from the eventual sale of said 
properties, either individually or collectively, between the City and County. 

3. The Mayor is authorized to sign any such agreements and documentation as prepared and 
approved by the City Attorney to effect the transfer of said property to the County of 
Vance. 

 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 12 

 

The foregoing Resolution 14-05, upon motion of Council Member**and second by Council 
Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the ** day of ---------2014:  YES:.  NO:.  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT:     
 
   

      _____________________________ 
      James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________   
 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 12 

 

----- Original Message -----  
From: Jonathan S. Care  
To: 'Ray Griffin'  
Cc: 'John H. Zollicoffer, Jr.' ; 'Jerry Ayscue' ; 'David Beck'  
Sent: Wednesday, October 30, 2013 9:12 AM 
Subject: 514 High Street, Tax Parcel 008 01033 
 
Vance County has received an offer on this piece of jointly owned property which was foreclosed on for past due 
taxes.  Can you please look to see if the City has any interest or need in this parcel, and if not, would there be any 
reason the Council would have objection to conveying their interest in this parcel to the County to effect a sale as 
has been done in the past? 
  
I am planning to present this to our Commissioners Monday evening for their action, subject to the City taking 
action as well, unless you see some reason for us to wait.  Thanks 
  
Jonathan S. Care 
Attorney at Law, PA 
109 West Montgomery Street 
Henderson, North Carolina 27536 
252.492.3053 Telephone 
252.430.8355 Fax 
  

CAF 14-11 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 12 

 

 

CAF 14-11 
Attachment #3 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 12 

 

 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 12 

 

 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 12 

 

 

 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 12 

 

 

CAF 14-11 
Attachment #4 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 12 

 

 



CAF 14-11: 13 January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 12 

 

 



CAF 14-16:13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

6 January 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Pete O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-16 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-09, FY 14 Budget Amendment #23, 
Amending the Water Fund to Use Contingency Funds to Appropriate Additional 
Legal Fees Within the Water Distribution Department 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approve Ordinance 14-09, FY 14 Budget Amendment #23, Amending the Water Fund to 

Use Contingency Funds to Appropriate Additional Legal Fees Within the Water Distribution 
Department 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
Additional funds are needed in the Water Fund to cover the anticipated costs of legal services 
incurred as a result of the lawsuit involving the City of Oxford’s claim regarding the Granville 
County Water Sales Agreement.  It is recommended to use a portion of the Water Fund 
contingency account to cover this additional appropriation. 
 
 
Enclosures 
 
 1.  Ordinance 14-09 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 Jan 14 Reg. Meeting 
 
 



CAF 14-16:13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

O R D I N A N C E  14-09 
 

FY 2013 -- 2014 BUDGET AMENDMENT #23 
AMENDING THE WATER FUND TO USE CONTINGENCY FUNDS FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (LEGAL) 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 27 June 2013, adopted its 
FY 13-14 Operating Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating budget from time-to-time, said amendment incorporated in this Ordinance; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

   -$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$                           

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

660: Non-Departmental Contingency 30-660-509900 42,700$        32,700$         (5,000)$           27,700$                      
818: Water Distribution Professional Services 30-818-500400 2,300$          13,700$         5,000$            18,700$                      
   -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 45,000$        46,400$         -$                46,400$                      
46,400$                      

Variance -$               

Notes:
To move funds from contingency to the Professional Services line item in the Water Fund to cover the 
anticipated additional costs of legal services as a result of the lawsuit involving the City of Oxford's claim 
regarding the Granville County Water Sales Agreement.

Ordinance 14-09

Reference:
CAF# 13-120; Ordinance #13-67; BA#18 

25 November 2013 Council Meeting

FUNDS:

30: WATER FUND EXPENDITURES

30: Water Fund 
FY 13-14 Budget Amendment #23

CAF# 14-16; Ordinance #14-09; BA#23 
13 January 2014 Council Meeting

To move additional funds from contingency to the Professional Services line item in the Water Fund to cover 
the anticipated additional costs of legal services as a result of the lawsuit involving the City of Oxford's claim 
regarding the Granville County Water Sales Agreement.

30: WATER FUND REVENUES

 
 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 14-09 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the ** day of _________2014:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   
ABSENT:  **.                 ___________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. *** 



CAF 14-16:13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-09, adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on _______________ (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 9, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of ____________2014. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 18 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
30 December 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 14-05 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-04, FY14 Budget Amendment #20, Authorizing 
the Transfer of Contingency Funds to Engineering in the CIP Regional IBT Project 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen:  (This item was originally brought before Council on 9 December 2013 Work 
Session as CAF 13-126 and Ordinance 13-70) 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO-5:Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure System 
 KSO-8: Provide Financial Resourcing:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and 

Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities.  

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 14-04, FY14 Budget Amendment #20, Authorizing the Transfer of 

Contingency Funds to Engineering in the CIP Regional IBT Project. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
On 27 September 2010 City Council approved the acceptance of a contract with CH2MHill for IBT 
services via Resolution 10-98. Throughout the Inter-basin Transfer Project, funding for the engineering 
services has been allocated in the contingency line item and then moved to the appropriate line item as 
needed, contingent on City Council approval. There is ongoing work related to the modeling and 
projections update which will require continued funding of the project services with CH2MHill.  
 
The City and its KLRW partners, through its legislative representatives, are discussing proposed 
legislation which may help expedite the lengthy process.  
 
Enclosures:  
 

1. Ordinance 14-04 
2. Resolution 10-98 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: ________________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 Jan 14 Reg. Meeting 
          



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 18 

 

O R D I N A N C E  14-04 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2013 - 2014 BUDGET 
TO TRANSFER CONTINGENCY FUNDS TO ENGINEERING IN THE  

CIP REGIONAL – IBT PROJECT 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #20 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 27 June 2013, adopted its 

FY 13-14 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the regional water treatment system, said fund referred to as 46: CIP 
Regional Water Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time, said amendment 
incorporated in this Ordinance.  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 18 

 

FUND:

PROJECT:

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 26-Jan-04 Budget Amendment Revised

Investment Income 46-939-458100 -$             12$                -$                12$                            
Trans Fr: 64 Regional 46-937-461064 465,000$      345,988$        -$                345,988$                    
Trans Fr: 78 Regional Res 46-937-461065 -$             525,000$        -$                525,000$                    

-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 465,000$      871,000$        -$                871,000$                    
871,000$                    

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 26-Jan-04 Budget Amendment Revised

Professional Services 46-937-500400 -$             79,224$         -$                79,224$                      
Contingency 46-937-509900 60,000$        188,012$        (134,135)$        53,877$                      
Planning/Design 46-937-510100 405,000$      119,988$        -$                119,988$                    
Engineering 46-937-510301 -$             483,776$        134,135$         617,911$                    
  -$             -$               -$                -$                           
  -$             -$               -$                -$                           

-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 465,000$      871,000$        -$                871,000$                    
871,000$                    

Variance -$               

City Council Meeting 6/23/2008; BA #1 Amendment to transfer $150,000 from the Regional Water FY 08-09 operating budget to the 
IBT Budget to continue plans and study of the project.

City Council Meeting 6/14/2010; BA #3 Amendment to transfer $125,000 from the Regional Water FY 10-11 operating budget to the 
IBT Budget.  This $125,000 will remain in contingency until further contracts are authorized 
by the City Council.

City Council Meeting 6/27/2013; Ord 13-19, BA #1 
(effective 7/1/2013)

This amendment appropriates $271,224 from contingency; $240,000 to Engineering due to a 
contract with CH2MHill for continued engineering services regarding the IBT Project and 
$31,224 to Professional Services to cover the legal fees to be incurred by Poyner & Spruill, 
LLC for this project.
Interfund transfer of $10,000 from Engineering to Planning/Design to cover overage in the 
Planning/Design line item.

Amendment provides for the formal allocation of $38,000 provided in the FY 2014 budget to 
Fund 46.  The transfer line from Fund 64 to Fund 46 is shown as a memo reference only 
since it was approved in the budget adoption ordinance.  Since Fund 46 is a capital 
improvement project fund, it's budgetary appropriations are not considered in the routine 
annual budget adoption ordinance and are made separately and subsequent to the budget 
adoption.

City Council Meeting 2/28/2011; Ord 11-17; BA #35

City Council Meeting 6/13/2011; Ord 11-39, BA #1 Amendment appropriates $150,000 to the CIP Regional IBT Project.  Appropriations will be 
placed in the contingency line item until further contracts are authorized by the City Council.

Amendment to transfer $125,000 from Contingency to Engineering to help cover the costs of 
the contract with CH2MHill which was approved by the City Council on 9/27/2010.

City Council Meeting 7/9/2012; Ord 12-47; BA #1 Amendment provides for the formal allocation of $38,000 provided in the FY 2013 budget to 
Fund 46.  The transfer line from Fund 64 to Fund 46 is shown as a memo reference only 
since it was approved in the budget adoption ordinance.  Since Fund 46 is a capital 
improvement project fund, it's budgetary appropriations are not considered in the routine 
annual budget adoption ordinance and are made separately and subsequent to the budget 
adoption.

City Council Meeting 11/10/2008; BA #14

City Council Meeting 6/22/2009; BA #1

Amendment to "true up" the IBT project budget with the engineering contract.  Funds were 
initially budgeted in the contingency line item.
The FY 09/10 Budget Ordinance appropriates $100,000 from Regional Water to the CIP 
Regional Water IBT Project.  This $100,000 will remain in contingency until such time as the 
Council approves additional contract or project costs for the project.

City Council Meeting 7/13/2009; BA #2

1/10/2010

Ordinance 14-04
46: CIP - Regional

937: KLRWS Inter-Basin Transfer Permit FY 13-14 Budget Amendment #20

Project Budget Created: 26 January 2004
Amending Capital Project 46-937: KLRWS Inter-Basin Transfer Permit

REVENUES

Amendment to appropriate actual costs thus far for the IBT Project ($119,988).  The revenue 
was appropriated from Regional Water Reserves, however the actual money was never 
transferred from the Reserves.  This amendment was made for the purpose of "making the 
transfer."  The project was to remain open until further review by the City Council.

EXPENDITURES

Reference: Notes:

 Council Meeting 01/13/2014; Ord 14-04, CAF 14-05; BA #20 Amendment to transfer $134,135 from Contingency to Engineering to help cover the costs of 
the contract with CH2MHill which was approved by the City Council on 9/27/2010.

City Council Meeting 6/27/2007; BA #1 Amendment to transfer $150,000 from the Regional Water FY 07-08 operating budget to the 
IBT Budget to continue plans and study of the project.

City Council Meeting 1/26/2004; BA #24 Amendment to establish a new project to obtain a new IBT (Interbasin Transfer) certificate as 
was required by the State.  Total project cost estimated to be $465,000. Revenue to come 
from Regional Reserve.

City Council Meeting 4/12/2004; BA #27 Amendment to decrease the Interbasin Transfer (Plan/Design) budget by $285,000 and 
contingencies by $60,000, for a total budget reduction of $345,000.  This was due to the 
Public Utilities Committee agreement on 3/22/2004 to allocate $120,000 for fiscal year 
2003/04 as a CIP Project for the work related to obtaining an Interbasin Transfer Permit.  The 
reduction from revenue was obtained by reducing the appropriation from Regional Reserve.

City Council Meeting 4/10/2006; BA #30

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 18 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-04, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 9 day of December 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  
**.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 14-05 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-04 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on  ____________ ,  2014 (Minute Book 42 p.**). 
This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 9, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of _______________2014. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
(This Ordinance was originally brought before Council as Ordinance 13-70 as a Work Session Item on 9 December 
2013.  In order to have a proper record of when items are voted on, it was necessary to change the Ordinance 
number to reflect the current year.)  
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 18 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   10—98 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
 OF A CONTRACT WITH CH2MHILL 

FOR THE INTER-BASIN TRANSFER OF WATER PROJECT 
FOR THE KERR LAKE REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 2010, 
and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one KSO as follows: KSO 5—Provide reliable, 

dependable infrastructure, Action Plan 5-2: Expand the Kerr Lake Regional Water 
Treatment Facility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources (NCDENR) 

requires that the inter-basin transfer of water (IBT) from one river basin to another be 
approved and done under the certification process of the EMC; and 

 
WHEREAS, A Master Services Agreement was executed with the engineering firm of 

CH2MHill on 8 May 2008 for services relative to an IBT Petition; and 
 
WHEREAS, CH2MHill has completed Task Orders One and Two of the requirements for the 

certification process and have submitted the scope of work for the third task as outlined 
in Attachment A; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Kerr Lake Regional Water System Advisory Board was advised of the City’s 

intent to continue with the IBT Petition process and there was no expressed opposition; 
and   

 
WHEREAS, funding for the IBT Process is set up as a CIP Project and additional funding in the 

amount of $125,000 was approved in the FY 10 Budget. 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE the execution of the contract with the engineering firm of 
CH2MHill in conjunction with the existing Master Services Contract for Task Order 
Three as more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY AUTHORIZES the Mayor to execute said agreement on behalf of the City. 
 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 18 

 

The foregoing Resolution 10—98, upon motion of Council Member Inscoe and second by 
Council Member Rainey and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following 
votes and was APPROVED on this the 27th Day of September 2010:  YES: Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke, Davis, Daye, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: Evans. 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Frank Frazier, Interim Deputy City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 41, p 662 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 18 

 

 
              

Resolution 10-98 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 18 

 

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 18 

 

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 18 

 

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 18 

 

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 18 

 

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 18 

 

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 18 

 

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 15 of 18 

 

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 16 of 18 

 

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 17 of 18 

 

 



CAF 14-05: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 18 of 18 

 

 



CAF 14-14: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

6 January 2014 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-14 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-08, Awarding of Departmental Handgun and 
Badge to Retiree Lieutenant Marshall Perry 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 6: Develop and Maintain a Qualified Municipal Workforce: To provide a supportive and 

competitive workforce climate that facilitates and maintains a strong workforce capability and 
capacity and adequate staffing levels. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-08, Awarding of Departmental Handgun and Badge to Retiree Lieutenant 

Marshall Perry 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Lieutenant Marshall Perry joined the police force in January 1989 and will be retiring from the City of 
Henderson effective 1 February 2014.  Upon the recommendation of Police Chief Marcus Barrow, I am 
requesting that the Henderson City Council recognize Lieutenant Perry’s departure, as has been the case 
with previous retirees, by awarding him his departmental badge and service side arm as per NCGS 20-
187.2:  “Badge and service side arms of deceased and retiring members of State, city and county law 
enforcement agencies” (See Enclosure No.2).   
 
It has been the tradition of the City of Henderson to award the retiring officer his/her badges at no cost 
and to also award the service side arm at the said price of $1.00. 
 
The weapon is Glock Model 22.40 caliber serial number PZK108. 
 
Enclosures 

1. Resolution 14-08 
2. Interim Chief Barrow’s Request 
3. NCGS 20-187.2 

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 January 14 Reg. Meeting 
                        



CAF 14-14: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
14-08 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AWARD OF DEPARTMENT 

HANDGUN AND BADGE TO RETIREE  
LIEUTENANT MARSHALL PERRY 

 
WHEREAS, Lieutenant Marshall Perry of the Henderson Police Department will be retiring with 

full benefits effective 1 February 2014; and, 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes 20-187.2 “Badges and service 

side arms of deceased and retiring members of State, City and County law enforcement 
agencies” which states that retiring members of such agencies shall receive upon request 
and at no cost to him/her, the badge worn. The governing body of such law enforcement 
agency may also award to a retiring member the service side arm at a price determined by 
such governing body, upon securing a permit as required by GS 14-402; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it has been the tradition of the City of Henderson to award the retiring officer 

his/her badge at no cost to him/her; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been the tradition of the City of Henderson to award the retiring officer 

his/her weapon at a nominal cost to him/her. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT 

IT DOES HEREBY APPROVE the award of Departmental Badge and Service Side Arm 
(Glock Model 22.40 caliber, serial number PZK108) to retiree Lieutenant Marshall Perry 
at cost of $1.00 to him. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council thank Lieutenant 

Marshall Perry for his years of good service to the City and wish him well in his 
retirement. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-08, introduced by Council Member ***and seconded by Council 
Member *** on this the ***day of ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was *** by 
the following votes:  YES:  .  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: None. 
       __________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
  
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



CAF 14-14: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 
CAF 14-14 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-14: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

CAF 14-14 
Attachment #3 



CAF 14-07:  13 January 14 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

8 January 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF 14-07 

Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the 
Months of November and December 2013.  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of tax releases and refunds from Vance County for the months of November and 

December 2013. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Vance County Tax office submitted the following tax releases and refunds to the Finance 
Department for the months of November and December 2013.  These releases and refunds are 
found to be in order and are being recommended for approval.  
 

 

Nov 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property
Releases
Foster, Lucy Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 20.74$                  
Foster, Lucy Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 21.76$                  
Foster, Lucy Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 22.78$                  
Foster, Lucy Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 22.78$                  
Foster, Lucy Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 22.78$                  
Foster, Lucy Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 22.49$                  
Foster, Lucy Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 23.28$                  
Foster, Lucy Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 23.28$                  
Foster, Lucy Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 23.27$                  
Foster, Lucy Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 23.27$                  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252-430-5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  13 January 2014 Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 14-07:  13 January 14 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 6 

 

 

Nov 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Coffey Bail Bonds Pers.Prop. Billed in Error 2013 15.00$                  
Foster, Lucy Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2013 24.66$                  
IGPS Company LLC Correct Value 2013 600.84$                
Kirby, Gregory Curtis Correct Value 2013 79.61$                  
Kirby, Gregory Curtis Correct Value 2013 5.21$                    
Marlin Leasing Corp Correct Value 2013 11.39$                  
Martinez-Alvarez, Jose Pers.Prop. Billed in Error 2013 36.86$                  
Olvera-Perez Mario Rebilled to include late listing pen. 2013 1.76$                    
Olvera-Perez Mario Rebilled to include late listing pen. 2013 1.76$                    
Pham, Viet Quang Correct Ownership 2013 (484.83)$              
State Employees Credit Union Correct Ownership 2013 484.83$                
Variety Stores Correct Value 2013 70.82$                  
Vaughan, Stephanie C Correct Value 2013 148.81$                
Total R&P Property Releases 6,219.80$             

Real & Personal Property
Refunds None -$                     
Total R& P  Property Refunds -$                     
Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Ref. 6,219.80$             

Vehicle Releases
Hargrove, Carla Boyd Pro-Rate 2012 4.57$                    
Rainey, Mathew Christopher Pro-Rate 2012 2.16$                    
Richardson, Lillian Haywood Pro-Rate 2012 6.31$                    
Brown, Markell Daquan Pro-Rate 2013 16.89$                  
Chavis, Jeanette Hart Pro-Rate 2013 2.18$                    
Crumpler, Nathan Stanford, Jr. Pro-Rate 2013 42.19$                  
Dargan, Joyce Hill Pro-Rate 2013 58.17$                  
Davis, Kiziah Gooch Pro-Rate 2013 5.22$                    
Davis, Scottie Lopaze Pro-Rate 2013 52.75$                  
Dock, Bruce Calvin, Jr. Pro-Rate 2013 4.88$                    
Dover, Jonathan Ray Pro-Rate 2013 15.94$                  
Glover, Tracy Annen Pro-Rate 2013 31.31$                  



CAF 14-07:  13 January 14 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 
 
  

Nov 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Total All Releases & Refunds Nov & Dec 2013 22,628.05$           

Hughes, Mickey Mantle Pro-Rate 2013 5.83$                    
Hunter, Zelton Arthaniel Pro-Rate 2013 8.28$                    
Keith, Lashonda Denise Pro-Rate 2013 25.25$                  
Lee, Tony Curtis, Jr. Pro-Rate 2013 6.15$                    
Lyons, Jernetta Williams Pro-Rate 2013 15.56$                  
McClinton, Rasheeda Lakeem Pro-Rate 2013 7.00$                    
Morales, Danilo Azotillo Correct Value 2013 9.61$                    
Roberts, Sheila Baines Pro-Rate 2013 19.09$                  
Stott, John Michael Pro-Rate 2013 110.61$                
Usher, Katie Elizabeth Correct Situs 2013 143.36$                
Wilkins, Kandis Kearney Pro-Rate 2013 16.57$                  
Yarborough, Darrell Anthony Pro-Rate 2013 18.96$                  

Total Vehicle Releases 628.84$                

Vehicle Refunds
Alston, Marie Smithwick Pro-Rate 2012 1.16$                    
Archie, Nathaniel Pro-Rate 2012 1.58$                    
Boyd, Nathaniel Jr. Pro-Rate 2012 1.33$                    
Brandon, Carol Annette Pro-Rate 2012 4.00$                    
Bullock, Sonya Nekea Pro-Rate 2012 16.34$                  
Floyd, Shannon Patrice Pro-Rate 2012 3.47$                    
Hughes, Mickey Mantle Pro-Rate 2012 0.72$                    
Lee, Mason Carl Pro-Rate 2012 0.60$                    
Rodriguez, Sandro Barrera Pro-Rate 2012 0.51$                    
Small, Betty Jean Pro-Rate 2012 6.92$                   
Taylor Chriropractic Pro-Rate 2012 65.76$                  
Williams, Nea Nicole Pro-Rate 2012 11.24$                  
Lewis, Amanda Leigh Pro-Rate 2013 10.55$                  
Parks, Nicole Lynette Pro-Rate 2013 5.34$                    

Total Vehicle Refunds 129.52$                
Tot. Veh. Rel. & Ref. 758.36$                

Total All Releases & Refunds Nov 2013 6,978.16$             



CAF 14-07:  13 January 14 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 
  

Dec 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property
Releases
Green, Bryant Lost to Foreclosure 2003 15.31                    
Hodge, Carolina Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2003 28.37                    
Green, Bryant Lost to Foreclosure 2004 16.06                    
Hodge, Carolina Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2004 29.76                    
Green, Bryant Lost to Foreclosure 2005 16.82                    
Hicks, Edward H Heirs Lost to Foreclosure 2005 13.00                    
Hodge, Carolina Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2005 31.16                    
Green, Bryant Lost to Foreclosure 2006 16.82                    
Hendricks, Craig Cameron Lost to Foreclosure 2006 24.12                    
Hicks, Edward H Heirs Lost to Foreclosure 2006 13.00                    
Hodge, Carolina Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2006 31.16                    
Green, Bryant Lost to Foreclosure 2007 16.82                    
Hendricks, Craig Cameron Lost to Foreclosure 2007 24.12                    
Hicks, Edward H Heirs Lost to Foreclosure 2007 13.00                    
Hodge, Carolina Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2007 31.16                    
Green, Bryant Lost to Foreclosure 2008 19.32                    
Hendricks, Craig Cameron Lost to Foreclosure 2008 30.51                    
Hicks, Edward H Heirs Lost to Foreclosure 2008 21.58                    
Hodge, Carolina Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2008 42.04                    
Jones, Rebecca & Jordon M Est Lost to Foreclosure 2008 22.48                    
Green, Bryant Lost to Foreclosure 2009 20.01                    
Hendricks, Craig Cameron Lost to Foreclosure 2009 31.59                    
Hicks, Edward H Heirs Lost to Foreclosure 2009 22.35                    
Hodge, Carolina Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2009 43.52                    
Jones, Rebecca & Jordon M Est Lost to Foreclosure 2009 246.58                  
Green, Bryant Lost to Foreclosure 2010 20.01                    
Hendricks, Craig Cameron Lost to Foreclosure 2010 31.59                    
Hicks, Edward H Heirs Lost to Foreclosure 2010 22.35                    
Hodge, Carolina Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2010 43.52                    
Jones, Rebecca & Jordon M Est Lost to Foreclosure 2010 246.58                  
Green, Bryant Lost to Foreclosure 2011 20.00                    
Hendricks, Craig Cameron Lost to Foreclosure 2011 31.59                    
Hicks, Edward H Heirs Lost to Foreclosure 2011 22.34                    
Hodge, Carolina Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2011 43.55                    



CAF 14-07:  13 January 14 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

Dec 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Jones, Rebecca & Jordon M Est Lost to Foreclosure 2011 246.57                  
Williams, Tanisha Pers Prop Billed 2011 34.78                    
Dickerson, Henry C Jr Correct Ownership 2012 (51.29)                  
Eaton, Tyrone Correct Ownership 2012 51.29                    
Green, Bryant Lost to Foreclosure 2012 20.00                    
Hendricks, Craig Cameron Lost to Foreclosure 2012 31.59                    
Hicks, Edward H Heirs Lost to Foreclosure 2012 22.34                    
Hodge, Carolina Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2012 43.55                    
Jones, Rebecca & Jordon M Est Lost to Foreclosure 2012 246.57                  
Star Grocery Correct Ownership 2012 768.01                  
Williams, Tanisha Pers Prop Billed 2012 34.78                    
Aiken, Kirby Glenn Correct Ownership 2013 525.75                  
Arby's Restaurant Gro Correct Value 2013 42.44                    
B & L Properties Correct Ownership 2013 65.42                    
Cawthorne, William Glenn Correct Value 2013 146.32                  
Compare Foods Add Late Listing Penalty 2013 (15.91)                  
Davis, Harold D Correct Value 2013 18.22                    
E & B Partnership Correct Value 2013 (1,244.68)             
Evans, Marie H Real Prop Billed in Error 2013 31.00                    
Freedom Life Church Religious 2013 6,731.49               
Green, Bryant Lost to Foreclosure 2013 21.20                    
Hawkins, Rosa Lee Brown Reg Veh Billed in Error 2013 420.93                  
Hendricks, Craig Cameron Lost to Foreclosure 2013 33.48                    
Hernadez, Sergio Pers Prop Billed 2013 47.53                    
Hicks, Edward H Heirs Lost to Foreclosure 2013 23.67                    
Hodge, Carolina Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2013 46.15                    
Hunt Investments, LLC Correct Value 2013 3,991.84               
Jones, Rebecca & Jordon M Est Lost to Foreclosure 2013 261.32                  
Jones, Stella D Real Prop Billed in Error 2013 257.36                  
Lloyd, Robert B Correct Ownership 2013 (65.42)                  
McKnight, Catherine Correction Exemp 2013 279.00                  
Rent A Center Correct Value 2013 30.18                    
Rice, Kelly Correct Ownership 2013 (326.92)                
Rice, Ramona Merriman Correct Ownership 2013 326.92                  
Tarheel Regional Comm Charitable Allocation 2013 196.55                  
USOC of NC Correct Value 2013 (44.62)                  
Warren-Vance Community Correction Exemp 2013 51.99                    
Williams, Tanisha Pers Prop Billed 2013 36.86                    

Total R&P Property Releases 14,638.45             



CAF 14-07:  13 January 14 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 

Dec 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property
Refunds
Knoll Terrace Pers Prop Billed 2013 81.84                    

Total R& P  Property Refunds 81.84                    
Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Ref. 14,720.29             

Vehicle Releases
Collins, Alphonso Ricardo Pro-Rate 2012 38.88                    
Kerr Area Transportation Charitable Allocation 2012 82.42                    
Terry, Dwayne Marcello Military, Non Resident 2012 80.60                    
Turrentine-Whitaker Pro-Rate 2012 6.64                      
Vass, George Kalvin Pro-Rate 2012 24.11                    
Adams, Jasmine Leilah Pro-Rate 2013 23.32                    
Barrett, David Lee Pro-Rate 2013 186.61                  
Crosson, Shariah Perry Reg Veh Billed in Error 2013 20.23                    
Edwards, Stephen Hampton Reg Veh Billed in Error 2013 50.11                    
Evans, Tiffany Vishond Pro-Rate 2013 44.35                    
Franklin Construction Pro-Rate 2013 142.09                  
Hargrove, Jessica Manique Pro-Rate 2013 4.21                      
Hauter, Alexander Nagi Pro-Rate 2013 30.52                    
Henderson, Ronald Pro-Rate 2013 4.82                      
Hillard, Brian Andrew Pro-Rate 2013 6.86                      
Jarrell, Frances Jones Pro-Rate 2013 7.72                      
Johnson, Frankie Donnell Pro-Rate 2013 2.81                      
Noel, Robert Frederick Pro-Rate 2013 58.20                    
Parham, Stacy Barnard Correct Value 2013 5.40                      
Williams, Linda Branch Pro-Rate 2013 16.66                    

Total Vehicle Releases 836.56                  

Vehicle Refunds
Griffin, Lynne Byerly Pro-Rate 2012 4.63                      
Lassiter, Alvin Lee Pro-Rate 2012 0.49                      
Maroke, Sony Pro-Rate 2013 62.83                    
Stevenson, John Richard Pro-Rate 2013 14.39                    
Waverly, Willie Lee Sr. Pro-Rate 2013 7.70                      

Total Vehicle Refunds 90.04                    
Tot. Veh. Rel. & Ref. 926.60                  
Total All Releases & Refunds Dec 2013 15,646.89             
Total All Releases & Refunds Nov & Dec 2013 22,625.05$           

















































































Meetings and Events Calendar 

 

Date Time Event Location 

Jan 31st 10:00 AM Henderson-Vance E-911         
Advisory Board Meeting 

E-911 Operations Center 

Feb 3rd 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Feb 4th 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of  

Adjustment City Council Chambers 

Feb 10th 9:30 AM KLRW Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Large Conference Room 

Feb 10th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Feb 11th 3:00 PM 
Henderson Community  

Appearance Commission City Council Chambers 

Feb 13th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Park & 
Recreations Commission Aycock Recreation Center 

Feb 19th 6:00 PM 
City Council  

Strategic Planning Retreat Henderson Country Club 

Feb 20th 8:00 AM 
City Council  

Strategic Planning Retreat Perry Memorial Library 

Feb 24th 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow City Council Chambers 

Mar 3rd 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Mar 4th 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of  

Adjustment City Council Chambers 

Mar 10th 5:00 PM Library Advisory Board Meeting Perry Memorial Library 

Mar 10th  6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Mar 11th  3:00 PM 
Henderson Community  

Appearance Commission City Council Chambers 

Mar 13th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Park & 
Recreations Commission Aycock Recreation Center 

Mar 20th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Mar 24th 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow City Council Chambers 

Mar 28th 10:00 AM Henderson-Vance E-911         
Advisory Board Meeting 

E-911 Operations Center 

Apr 1st 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of  

Adjustment City Council Chambers 

Last Updated 1/10/2014 





















CAF 14-13: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

10 January 2014 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-13 

Consideration of Approval of:  1) Resolution 14-07, Authorizing the Execution of 
Change Order #2 for the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Project to Devere 
Construction Company, Inc. in the Amount of $33,080 Subject to Final Pricing, and 
2) Ordinance 14-08 Amending the FY14 Budget to Authorize the Use of the 
Contingency Funds to the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Project for 
Change Order #2. 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems. 
 

 
Recommendation:   
 

Approval of: 
 

  1) Resolution 14-07, Authorizing the Execution of Change Order #2 for the Henderson 
Water Reclamation Facility Project to Devere Construction Company, Inc. in the Amount of 
$33,080, subject to final pricing. 

 2) Ordinance 14-08 Amending the FY14 Budget to Authorize the Use of the Contingency 
Funds to the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Project for Change Order #2. 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
On 10 Dec 2010, the City Council approved acceptance of a State Revolving Loan, via 
Resolution 12-98, in the amount of $16,615,000 for improvements to the Henderson Water 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 13 Jan 14 Work Session 



CAF 14-13: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

 

Reclamation Facility providing funding for major improvements to the plant which will simplify 
treatment processes as well as reduce operational costs. 
 
Change Order #1 in the amount of $55,709 was approved by the City Council on 23 September 
2013, via Resolution 13-09-A, leaving a contingency balance of $601,431. 
 

Graph Provided by McGill Associates 

PCO # Description Cost Days

9 Caustic Injection Manhole Replacement 5,184.49$      1

Add Clarifier Effluent Piping 2,500.00$      0

11 Bollard Adjustment at Headworks 383.67$          0

6R Admin Building Termite Treatment 799.31$          1

RAS Flow Meter Vault 10,000.00$   

10R Added Rebar at Clarifier / Reduced at OD (6,394.50)$     2

13 Relocate Existing at IPS 11,999.25$    4

PROACE Credit (9,765.00)$    

14 MH #3 18,371.93$    3

Headworks Structural Changes

Headworks / O2 Conflicts relocations

Credit for Valve stem guides

Credit for DI to PVC for Non Potable

Increase sewer to Admin bldg

Totals 33,079.15$    11

Henderson WRF Open PCO's / Credits

 
 
Staff is requesting approval for subsequent issues which have arisen that require adjustments to 
the contract (credits and debits). These items are still under review by the contractor and State 
for final numbers related to the change order items.  There are several items not yet priced by the 
contractor which staff should have available for final consideration at the 27 January 2014 
Council Meeting.  
 
The proposed budget amendment will be presented at the 27 January 2014 Council Meeting for 
consideration once the final numbers are received.  
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Resolution 14-07 
2. Resolution 13-09-A 
3. Ordinance 14-08 (to be presented at 27 January 2014 Meeting) 



CAF 14-13: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   14-07 
 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDER #2 TO DEVERE CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE HENDERSON WATER RECLAMATION 

FACILITY PROJECT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 
2013, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5: Provide 

Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure - To provide reliable, dependable and environmentally 
compliant infrastructure systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council accepted loan funding for this purpose from the NC Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources, Infrastructure Finance Section; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is $601,431 remaining in the contingency fund, which could be used for these costs 

pending City Council approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Consulting Engineer and City staff recommend approval of Change Order #2, as 

outlined in the letter provided by McGill Associates, to Devere Construction Company, Inc., 
subject to approval of the Infrastructure Finance Section. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY APPROVE the execution of Change Order #2 of the Henderson Water Reclamation 
Facility Improvement Project to Devere Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of $33,080, 
subject to final pricing; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to sign all agreements and documents 

necessary to effect said Agreement. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 14-07, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member **, 
and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the *** 
day of **** 2010:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 41, pp. **. 

 



CAF 14-13: 13 January 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   13-09-A 
 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDER #1 TO DEVERE 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE HENDERSON 

WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 
2013, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5: Provide 

Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure - To provide reliable, dependable and environmentally 
compliant infrastructure systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has accepted loan funding for this purpose from the NC Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources, Infrastructure Finance Section; and 
 
WHEREAS, several alternates were not awarded with the original contract and staff is recommending 

several additions to the original project; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is $657,140 remaining in the contingency fund, which could be used for these costs 

pending City Council approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Consulting Engineer and City staff recommend approval of Change Order #1, as 

outlined in the letter provided by McGill Associates, to Devere Construction Company, Inc., 
subject to approval of the Infrastructure Finance Section. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY APPROVE the execution of Change Order #1 of the Henderson Water Reclamation 
Facility Improvement Project to Devere Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of $55,709; 
said change order being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution;  and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to sign all agreements and documents 

necessary to effect said Agreement. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 13-09-A, upon motion of Council Member Brown and second by Council 
Member Daeke, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the 23rd day of September 2013: YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Brown, Daye and Coffey.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Kearney. 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, p. 37 
 


	#1 RM 13 Jan 2014
	#31 9 December Reg
	CAF 14-04 Permits in Same Legal  Name O 14-03
	CAF 14-01  CAF FY13 Audit Presentation R 14-01
	CAF 14-02  Training Center Repairs Approval O 14-01 R 14-03
	CAF 14-19 Authorizing Embassy Cultural Center Use of City Owned parking Lot 14-10
	CAF 14-11 disposition of 514 High Street proprty to vance county R 14-05
	CAF 14-16 (Water Fund Contingency  Legal Fees) O 14-09
	CAF 14-05, Authorization of IBT Contingency Money Movement O 14-04
	CAF 14-14 Awarding  handgun and badge to retiring Lieutenant Perry  R 14-08
	CAF 14-07 Tax rel-ref Nov & Dec 2013
	Perry Memorial Library Audit 30 June 2013
	Meetings and Event Calendar
	#12 December 2013 HFD
	CAF 14-13  Using HWRF Project Contingency for Change Order #2 . R 14-07, O14-08

